Public Document Pack

EPSOM AND WALTON DOWNS CONSERVATORS

Friday 22 May 2020 at 6.30 pm
Place: Remote Meeting
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’.
The link to the meeting is:

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/reqgister/7630726552518825484
Webinar ID: 435-872-699

Telephone (listen-only): 0800 389 5284, Telephone Access code: 273-814-244

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Epsom and Walton Downs
Conservators meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the
business set out in this agenda.

Committee Members

Councillor Liz Frost, the Council (Chairman)

Simon Durrant, Jockey Club Racecourses (the Company) (Vice-Chairman)
Andrew Cooper, Jockey Club Racecourses (the Company)
Simon Dow, Horserace Betting Levy Board (the Levy Board)
Councillor Bernice Froud, the Council

Councillor Jan Mason, the Council

Councillor Steven McCormick, the Council

Councillor Lucie Mclntyre, the Council

Stephen Wallis, Jockey Club Racecourses (the Company)
Councillor Clive Woodbridge, the Council

Yours sincerely

\C e\ de~r

Clerk to the Conservators

For further information, please contact Democratic Services, email:
democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel: 01372 732000

x * o
+SZPSOM BPR: Kathryn Beldon, CPFA
EWELL Clerk to the Conservators ErsomM DOWNS

NACECOUTSE

BOROUGH COUNCIL


https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7630726552518825484

Public information

Please note that this meeting will be a ‘virtual meeting’

This meeting will be held online and is open to the press and public to attend as an observer using
free GoToWebinar software, or by telephone.

A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda and on the
Council’s website. A telephone connection number is also provided on the front page of this
agenda as a way to observe the meeting, and will relay the full audio from the meeting as an
alternative to online connection.

Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on the
Council’'s website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes.

Agendas, reports and minutes for the Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app
for iPad, Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information
regarding this Committee, please email us at Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk.

Exclusion of the Press and the Public

There are no matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose
confidential or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985. Should any such matters arise during the course of discussion of
the above items or should the Chairman agree to discuss any other such matters on the grounds
of urgency, the Committee will wish to resolve to exclude the press and public by virtue of the
private nature of the business to be transacted.

Questions from the Public

Questions from the public are not permitted at meetings of the Epsom and Walton Downs
Conservators.


https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

AGENDA

OPENING AND CLOSURE OF CAR PARKS ON THE DOWNS (Pages 5 - 20)

To consider whether the car parks on the Downs should now open to the public.
To facilitate future decision making by agreeing a scheme of delegation for the
opening and closing of the Car Parks managed by the Council on behalf of the
Conservators in cases of emergency or urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators Agenda Item 1
22 May 2020

OPENING AND CLOSURE OF CAR PARKS ON THE DOWNS

Head of Service/Contact: Amardip Healy, Chief Legal Officer

Annexes/Appendices (attached): Annex 1: Car Parks location plans

Annex 2: Letter from TGMB dated 11 May
2020

Annex 3: Social Distancing Poster

Other available papers (not

attached): - Report to Special Meeting of the
Conservators 22 July 2019, Access
Arrangements for Car Parks.

- Cabinet Office Guidance: Staying alert and
safe (social distancing) published 11 May
2020

Report summary

To consider whether the car parks on the Downs should now open to the public.
To facilitate future decision making by agreeing a scheme of delegation for the
opening and closing of the Car Parks managed by the Council on behalf of the
Conservators in cases of emergency or urgency.

Recommendation (s)

The Conservators are asked to:

(1) note the effect of Covid-19 on the support services provided by Epsom
and Ewell Borough Council;

(2) note the letter from TGMB (Annex 2) and consider their request in relation
to the availability of public car parking (Annex 1) on the Downs;

(3) consider and agree one option from the options set out at paragraph 2.6
of this report in relation to the opening and closing of the car parks on
the Downs;

(4) consider the future management arrangements of the car parks managed
by the Epsom and Ewell Borough Council on behalf of the Conservators
and approve the following delegation to the Clerk to the Conservators:

Page 5



Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators Agenda Iltem 1
22 May 2020

(i) The Clerk to the Conservators, or their nominated deputy is
empowered to take all necessary decisions in cases of emergency
or urgency in relation to the opening or closing of any or all of the
car parks on the Downs managed by Epsom and Ewell Borough
Council.

(i) For the purposes of this delegation, emergency and urgency have
the ordinary dictionary meaning of the words and may imply
consideration of health and safety, legal and financial risk or that
the interests of the Conservators may be compromised. In the
absence of the Clerk to the Conservators, the nominated deputy
will exercise emergency or urgency powers in the same way.

(iii)  In deciding whether or not to exercise the emergency or urgency
delegation, the Clerk to the Conservators, or nominated deputy,
should consider whether to consult the Chairman and Vice
Chairman of the Conservators and have regard to their views if
consulted.

(iv) The Clerk to the Conservators shall always be entitled to refer
matters for a decision to a meeting of the Conservators where it is
considered by the Clerk expedient to do so.

1 Background
Car Parks on the Downs

1.1 The Council manage a number of car parks on the Downs on behalf of the
Conservators. The location of the car parks are identified on the plan at
Annex 1. Some of the car parks are known or referred to in different ways.
For the purposes of this report, all references will be in accordance with
the names set used on the Plan at Annex 1.

1.2 The car parks which have previously been and can be opened to the
public are set out in Table 1 below:

Table 1: List of available car parks

1. Grandstand Road - View Point

Grandstand Road - Laybys x 4

Old London Road — Threshers Layby

Old London Road — Top Car Park

The Tea Hut Car Park

IR B

The Downs keepers’ Hut Car Park & the Tattenham Grass Extension

Page 6



Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators

22 May 2020

Agenda Iltem 1

1.3 ltis important to reiterate that the land upon which the car parks stand, is
not owned either by the Council or by the Conservators. There is a great
deal of confusion in the minds of car park users and those who support
those users as to both the Council’'s and the Conservator’s roll and
standing in relation to the provision and management of the car parks on

the Downs.

1.4  Under normal operations, with the exception of the Top Car Park, the
other car parks on the Downs managed by the Council on behalf of the
Conservators are kept unlocked and are available for public use all year

round with the exception of race days.

1.5 Access to the Top Car Park is prevented by a gate on the Old London
Road which, under usual circumstances, is locked at 5pm in the winter
and 9pm in the summer.

1.6 Itis important to understand that both the capacity of each of the car
parks and also their potential conflicts and challenges. Table 2 below
provides a summary of this information:

Table 2: Car parks managed by the Epsom & Walton Downs Conservators
Name Ch . Conflicts and challenges
Capacity

Grandstand Road - View Point 30 Potential for conflict with the Golf Course
Grandstand Road - Laybys x 4 2-5cars Potential for conflict with the Golf Course
each
Old London Road — Threshers 3-4 No conflict
Layby
Old London Road — Top Car Park | 120 Anti-social behaviour, necessity to lock the
gate at the Old London Road in the
evenings
The Tea Hut Car Park 40 No conflicts
The Downs keepers’ Hut Car 50-60 No conflicts with Downs keepers’ Hut but
Park & the Tattenham Grass & if further using the extension and leaving open could
Extension extension is result in anti-social behaviour from car
used can go | drivers
to 300
Hyperion Car Park 30 Not used on the grounds of health and

safety and anti-social behaviour from car
drivers. Also used by race horses from one
of the biggest and busiest yards as a safe
crossing to and from gallops

Page 7




Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators Agenda Iltem 1
22 May 2020

1.7  Following concerns several years ago about anti-social behaviour the
Hyperion car park was closed. This lead to increase pressure at certain
times to have increased car parking capacity, which resulted in a report to
a special meeting of the Conservators in July 2019, to enable the opening
up of further parts of the Tattenham Enclosure for car parking in the
summer months only.

1.8 Atthe time the delegated authority was also approved to consider
requests from the land owner in relation to determining any request for
modified hours or access to any of the car parks managed by the
Conservators. Examples would include the making of any temporary road
or street order, or the opening up of any car parking area. However if any
change required permanent changes, then the matter would still need to
go to the Conservators.

Covid-19

1.9 On the 16 March 2020, the Government introduced new and updated
industry guidance on limiting the spread of Covid-19, following a change
in approach to a ‘delay’ phase.

1.10 The guidance provided information for specific sectors, including schools
and transport, on what precautions to take, what to do if someone
develops symptoms and how to limit the spread of the virus. The aim was
to slow the spread of the virus, reduce pressures on the NHS and protect
the most vulnerable.

1.11 However, by 18 March 2020, the advice changed and schools were
directed to close from 23 March 2020 until further notice. By 20 March
further guidance was issued requiring the immediate closure of
entertainment, hospitality and indoor leisure premises across the country
to take place from the end of trading hours. In addition new measures
further limit people’s sustained social contact and the public were urged to
stay at home and limit all but essential travel, with people who could work
from home to do so. The aim again was to limit the spread of the virus.

1.12 The advice and guidance continued to be issued, on a daily basis. The
Coronavirus Act 2020 was passed along with a wide variety of
regulations, with the aim of delaying the spread of the virus.

1.13 On 20 March 2020 Council Officers reported an unprecedented number of
people using the parks and open spaces across the Borough and on the
Downs. There was clear evidence that large parts of the public were not
observing the social distancing rules along with the advice to stay at home
and not to gather in groups.

Page 8



Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators Agenda Iltem 1
22 May 2020

1.14 By 23 March 2020 Council Officers became seriously concerned about
the level of activity on the Downs and the impact of this on both public
safety in terms of spreading the virus, the pressures this was placing on
keeping the public away from the horses in training during the mornings
and also on impact on the health and safety of staff officers including the
Downskeepers who work on the Downs. This was all at a time when the
primary focus of the Council was on supporting the Borough’s most
vulnerable residents as part of its civil contingency duties. The Council
placed a number of posters on Downs setting out the guidance on social
distancing, an example of a poster is included at Annex 3.

1.15 On 26 March 2020, Officers were given the authority to close Council
owned car parks serving Council parks because of the failure of the public
to follow social distancing guidance.

1.16 As aresult, in consultation with the Council’s Covid-19 Team (the
emergency response team) following concerns raised by Surrey Police, all
the car parks managed by the Council on the Downs were also closed.

1.17 To manage the threat to public safety when the gallops are in use, the
messaging to the public was to encourage public use of the Downs after
12 noon daily, but to avoid the area entirely if possible. A range of
messages and posters were used to ensure the message was
disseminated as quickly as possible. This had a positive effect and public
use reduced.

1.18 Itis important to note that a number of other organisations who either own
and or manage open spaces and parks, such as local authorities, the
National Trust, closed their parks and open spaces to the public in
response to the refusal of the public to follow the Government’s guidance
at the time. The message to the public to stay at home if possible, to limit
outside activity and to follow social distancing requirements took some
time for some elements of the public to observe.

1.19 On 13 May 2020, the Government changed its guidance in terms of how
far people could travel for their time outside along with number of times
people could go out for exercise.

1.20 Itis important to note that the advice remains to

“... stay at home as much as possible, work from home if you can, limit
contact with other people, keep your distance if you out (2 metres apart
where possible), wash your hands regularly”.

The advice also remains that

‘Do not leave home if you or someone you live with has any of the
following: a high temperature, a new, continuous cough, a loss of, or
change to, your sense of smell or taste”

Page 9



Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators Agenda Iltem 1
22 May 2020

1.21 In response to easing of the restrictions on outside activity, many
organisations are now starting to review their risk assessments and open
up their parks and open spaces gradually and in step with government
advice. However, some still remain closed.

1.22 The ability to allow the public to access car parks, is in some cases
dependent on whether the car parks have facilities and require staff to
open and close. To manage any car parks and facilities employers are
required to ensure staff can work in a safe environment. At this time of
intense pressure on resources, both because of iliness and through
redeployment of officers to civil contingency duties, the Council has to
consider what services and support it can provide and needs to focus on.

1.23 At present despite barriers being in place stopping access to the car parks
on the Downs, members of the public have decided to move the barriers
themselves to gain access. Inevitably this approach evidences the
concern that guidance and advice will not be followed by some.

1.24 Despite the car parks on the Downs being closed, there has been a
significant increase in visitors since the lockdown eased. This is
generating more litter and more fly-tipping which the Downskeepers have
to remove. The team are also trying to keep the public away from the
gallops in the morning, dealing with angry car drivers wanting to visit the
Downs, along with trying the manage the many cases careless parking on
the busy roads.

1.25 Many of the Council’s Officers providing support and services on the
Downs are in face to face contact with the public. They carry out their
duties sometimes under very challenging and difficult circumstances,
particularly where they are required to enforce closures and restrictions.
There are many examples of aggressive behaviour towards staff. The
posting of inaccurate information by some on social media does evidence
the unpleasant environment which is being created around the safety
concerns of keeping the car parks closed.

1.26 Although, there has not been a reported incident on the Downs as yet,
elsewhere in the Country there are growing reports of the public not
always respecting the work or the safety of front line service staff. The
cases of assaults on staff is steadily growing.

1.27 The issue around the effect of number of visitors has been raised by the
letter from TGMB (Annex 2). The influx of visitors to the Downs is putting
the safety of both the public and the racehorses who use the gallops for
training in the mornings, at risk. Some visitors using the Downs, despite
the efforts to increase public awareness, have little understanding of the
multi-use nature of the Downs particularly near the gallops in the
mornings, something which is again being fuelled by some social media
posts.

Page 10



Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators Agenda Iltem 1
22 May 2020

1.28 The Council’'s webpage on the Downs contains clear messages about
safety issues. However, since the 11t May, the advice is now being
ignored by many visitors.

2 Proposals

2.1 The relaxation of the restrictions on using outdoor spaces from the 13
May has led to an expectation by visitors to the Downs, that the Downs
should operate as normal ie pre Covid 19. This has resulted in road safety
concerns from the volume of visitors to the Downs travelling by car and
leaving their cars parked on the main roads leading to the Downs.

2.2 The level of car use and visitors is also affecting other users of the
Downs, be they the trainers who operate from the Downs, or those who
use the bicycles, or those who arrive on foot.

2.3 The letter from TGMB, reflects their level of concern just as the
statements around the easing of lockdown were made.

2.4  They raise these specific points :

2.4.1 “Prior to the lockdown measures, the training grounds saw a
sudden and large increase in people accessing the Downs for the
exercise during the hours of training (6.30 am — 12.00pm).

2.4.2 Thisin turn led to a greater concern surrounding health and safety
on the Downs as there were more roaming the Downs as there
were more visitors roaming the Downs who were unaware they
were crossing a gallop which could result in a serious accident”.

2.5 As such the request from the TGMB is to close the Top Car Park but also
makes reference to the “London Road car park” to remain closed. This
latter reference should be to the old London Road Gate and not car park,
since the Top Car Park is the car park off London Road, which can only
be accessed by a gate.

2.6  There are various options in relation to the operation of the car parks
available for consideration. However, the options which address many of
the issues raised, fall in the range of options set out in Table 3 below:

Table 3: Recommendation 3: Options

Option 1 to open the car parks referred to in paragraph 1.2 of this report, to the
public immediately;

Page 11



Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators Agenda Iltem 1
22 May 2020

Option 2 to open the car parks referred to in paragraph 1.2 of this report, to the

public in phases, with the Council deciding on the phasing which would
include the Old London Road Car Park, known as the Top Car Park on the
Plan at Annex 1, to open last;

Option 3 to open all the car parks referred to in paragraph 1.2 of this report, to the

public with the exception of the Old London Road Car Park known as the
Top Car Park on the Plan at Annex 1, which will remain closed;

Option 4 to keep all the car parks referred to at paragraph 1.2 of this report closed.

2.7

2.8

29

210

2.11

The considerations in relation to selection of the Options are incorporated
within the body of the report. The only point to draw particular attention to
is that if the Top Car Park is to open, it will not be locked at night.

The Council will not be marking the car parks with any social distancing
markers, as this is not possible. However, if opened, there were will be
posters reminding the public of the requirements. It cannot be stressed
enough that it will be the behaviour of the public which will dictate, as it
has to date, whether the car parks if opened, can or should remain open.

Any consideration to open the car parks must allow for the car parks to be
closed or reducing capacity if the public refuse to follow or respect
Government guidance. To enable this to be actioned quickly a scheme of
delegation is being recommended.

The proposed delegation to the Clerk to the Conservators, follows a very
similar process in place for the Council in cases of emergency and
urgency. The Council has delegation to its Chief Executive and Chief
Operating Officer to take all necessary decisions in cases of emergency
or urgency. During the current pandemic this delegation has allowed the
Council to make the urgent decisions it has needed to without the need to
call a meeting of a Committee.

The proposed delegation is not time limited, but is limited to decisions
relating to the operation of the car parks in cases of emergency or
urgency in relation to the opening or closing of the car parks on the
Downs managed by Epsom and Ewell Borough Council.

Financial and Manpower Implications

3.1

There are no financial implications if the Top Car Park remains closed. If
the car park is opened it will no longer be locked at night.

Page 12




Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators Agenda Iltem 1
22 May 2020

3.2 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: none arising from the contents of
this report.

4 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

4.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from the contents of this
report.

4.2 The issues around whether all or some of the car remain open is an
operational one based on the ability of the public to respect the
Government’s guidance on social distancing and the ability of the Council
and the Police to manage the number of visitors in terms of both public
safety of the visitors, staff and other users of the Downs.

4.3  Monitoring Officer’s comments: none arising from the contents of this
report.

5 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

5.1  The use of cars by large numbers of visitors to the Downs is not helpful to
the climate change agenda and longer term this will need to be
addressed.

6 Partnerships
6.1 None
7 Risk Assessment

7.1 The car parks on the Downs were closed in mid-March as a direct result
of the large number of visitors refusing to follow Government guidance on
social distancing and gathering in groups. The situation became so
serious all the car parks were closed immediately.

7.2  With the easing of some of the guidance about outdoor activity, the
Downs has again seen the refusal of large numbers of the public to
respect Government guidance on social distancing. The level of visitors
continues to present a risk and therefore, the pressure even if the car
parks are fully or partially opened, will require close monitoring to ensure
the safety of all users of the Downs.

7.3 To manage this risk, it is important to have a delegation in place which
allows the car parks to be opened and closed as may be needed in cases
of emergency and urgency in the event the public fail to abide by the
Government’s advice on social distancing.

Page 13



Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators Agenda Iltem 1
22 May 2020

8 Conclusion and Recommendations

8.1  The opening and the closure of the car parks at the Downs has been
driven by the behaviour of the public visiting the Downs. It is important
those choosing to visit the area do so mindful of the Government’s
guidance and do not place unnecessary strain on local services, be those
of the Council, the Police or other emergency services.

8.2 The Council has taken all appropriate action to raise public awareness of
the guidance around social distancing and when it would be safer to visit
some parts of the Downs. However, the advice was ignored by large
numbers of the public, which resulted in the car parks being closed in
March 2020. The Council will continue to raise awareness, however, there
does need to be a change in behaviour of the visiting public, if the car
parks are to remain open during the period of Government advice on
Covid-19.

8.3 There is now intense pressure to reopen the car parks, however there has
been no change in the advice on social distancing. As such the Council
needs the ability to respond quickly to resolve public safety compliance
issues as and when they arise, hence the recommendation for a
delegation.

Ward(s) Affected: College Ward; Town Ward; Woodcote Ward;

Page 14



bles %

Car Parks on the Downs

|
%, | &
% \ Laybys - , %,
y @
5 parking for between 2-5 |SE— 2
5 =
o cars each - K
: Aane B284 (YEW TREE BoTTOM ROAD) =
=d
X
g View Point Car
o
g
|

-
Park

NORTH vigy I’

&,
Threshers Layby — 2
te parking for 3 cars
g
B of
= o 7
Z ©
(1]
Trainer’s Car Park The Tea Hut Car Park 2o a0 o
. _ g e} Le, <
— managed by the 3 ] ), e
Racecourse z ,sc%
3 Hyperion Car Park §
The Downskeepers’ Hut ;. ¥e preat. Burgh 2
W
&@9 Car Park and the A S = S
S i N =
> Tattenham Enclosure ‘ £
= Hal ]
| = S
¥ o
\ e o B g
\ \ 4 r"""-!l\'!sj Ve “i
Downs House _ D?“
»
"% <
Top Car Park S o
Hﬂ:w f-‘“'s
S
a '905& Er R | | \: Garlichill Larches % d""&%
3 FRoap \ "!‘l % S
¢ 1 i 3 o 4 = @
a Langley Vale | il. » Teh @ ‘% ><
3 i ‘f\e i el
J 5 li ox “ X
% i £
o ‘ E
E'EACQNS "_r; i
) |

® Ordnance Survey - data derived from OS Premium

T Wa)| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda Item 1
L 44 4 Annex 2

ErPsOM DOWNS

TGMB

c/o Jockey Club Estates
101 High Street
Newmarket

Suffolk, CB8 8JL

11th May 2020
Epsom and Walton Downs Conservators
c/o Town Hall
The Parade
Epsom
Surrey, KT18 5BY

To Whom It May Concern,

Further to a Training Grounds Management Board (TGMB) meeting held on
Thursday 7" May 2020, | am writing to you to bring to your attention to a discussion
at our meeting concerning the impact the COVID-19 restrictions have had on the
Epsom Downs Training Grounds. Prior to the lockdown measures, the training
grounds saw a sudden and large increase in people accessing the Downs for
exercise during the hours of training (6:30am - 12:00pm). This in turn led to a
greater concern surrounding health and safety on the Downs as there were more
visitors roaming the Downs who were unaware they were crossing a gallop which
could result in a serious accident.

Since the closure of the top car park and the London Road car park, this problem
has become more manageable as the training grounds area of the Downs is now
less accessible to the public. Please can | urge that the Conservators Committee
give strong consideration to maintaining the closures, even when the lockdown
measures begin to ease countrywide. The TGMB feels that keeping these car parks
temporarily shut would greatly assist in ensuring the safety of all concerned during
the hours of training until the public health situation returns to normal.

| look forward to hearing for you.

Yours faithfully,

Simon Philip
Chairman of TGMB

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda Item 1
Annex 3

B

BOROUGH COUNCIL -~

SOCIAL DISTANCING

Observe the 2 metre rule

Parks and open spaces are excellent places to exercise and to get fresh air, which
IS great for your physical and mental wellbeing. However, we will have to close
them if people do not follow the Government’s social distancing instructions.

To ensure that everyone can continue to use our parks and open spaces safely:
X Keep two metres distance from people not in your household
X Do not take part in group fitness activities or group dog walks

X Plan ahead, as many amenities, including playgrounds, toilets and cafes are
closed

Stay local

Epsom Downs is used to train racehorses every morning from 6am to 12 noon.
To allow the training to take place safely, do not visit Epsom Downs before 12
noon and please try to avoid the area entirely if you can

X Take your litter home. Our staff are being diverted to deliver critical services,
and we need you to take your rubbish home with you rather than using litter
bins or littering

X |f you arrive and there are crowds or the car park is busy, choose a different
park/open space or return another day or time.

We will be monitoring visitor capacity at our parks and open spaces. If necessary
we may need to take immediate action such as closing access to car parks, and
other measures to ensure the Government’s instructions are followed.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



	Agenda
	1 Opening and Closure of Car Parks on the Downs
	Opening and Closure of Car Parks on the Downs Annex 1
	Opening and Closure of Car Parks on the Downs Annex 2
	Opening and Closure of Car Parks on the Downs Annex 3


